
   

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Wednesday 4 September 2019 
 
Time:  2.00 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Corporate Director for Strategy and Resources 
 
Senior Governance Officer: Laura Wilson   Direct Dial: 0115 8764301 

   
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2019 
 

3 - 8 

4  UPDATE FROM THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING, 
PLANNING AND HERITAGE  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

9 - 10 

5  HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

11 - 24 

6  WORK PROGRAMME  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

25 - 28 

 
 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 
 

Public Document Pack



CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC. ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK. INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE.



 

1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held in the Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley 
House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 3 July 2019 from 2:05pm to 
3:55pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Anne Peach (Chair) 
Councillor Carole McCulloch (Vice Chair, 
items 9-14) 
Councillor Georgia Power (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Maria Joannou 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan (items 9-13) 
Councillor Pavlos Kotsonis 
Councillor Jane Lakey 
Councillor Ethan Radford 
Councillor Andrew Rule 
Councillor Cate Woodward 
 

Councillor Sue Johnson 
 

  
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Shelley Harrod - Research, Engagement and Consultation Manager 
Lucy Lee - Head of Customer Services 
Councillor Sally 
Longford 

- Portfolio Holder for Energy, Environment and Democratic 
Services 

Adrian Mann - Governance Officer 
Gareth Sayers - Development and Change Manager 
Zena West - Senior Governance Officer 
 
9  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Sue Johnson - Council business 
 
10  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
11  MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2019 were confirmed as a true record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
12  CITIZEN SATISFACTION SURVEY / CUSTOMER SERVICES 

 
Councillor Sally Longford (Portfolio Holder for Energy, Environment and Democratic 
Services), Shelley Harrod (Research, Engagement and Consultation Manager) and 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 3.07.19 

2 

Lucy Lee (Head of Customer Services) presented a report on the results of the 
Nottingham Citizen Survey 2018. The following points were discussed: 
 
(a) the annual Citizen Satisfaction Survey is no longer a statutory requirement upon 

Local Authorities, but it is a commitment of the Labour Group’s manifesto to 
conduct it annually. It is procured alongside the ‘Respect’ survey, at a cost of 
around £23,000. The appointed consultant helps to frame the questions and aims 
to carry out 2,000 face-to-face interviews with people in all wards, who are 
representative of the age, gender and ethnicity of the population of the City as a 
whole, and then input and quality check the data. The results are considered to be 
an accurate reflection of the views of the total City population, but they do not 
reflect opinion at a ward level as accurately. The results are shared with the 
relevant departments and Portfolio Holders; 

 
(b) the survey reflects that citizens are generally satisfied with how anti-social 

behaviour is tackled, how they are treated by the Council and how the Council 
communicates information. However, the overall level of satisfaction has 
decreased. There is a perception that the general cleanliness of public spaces 
has reduced and the amount of street begging has increased. There is also a 
feeling that the value for money from the Council has reduced, and that people 
now have less influence over decisions affecting their local area; 

 
(c) 12% of the people surveyed were dissatisfied in the services provided by the 

Council. Of these, the primary demographic was white males aged 45 to 64 in 
employment, in the Aspley and Leen Valley and the St Ann’s, Mapperley and 
Dales areas. Nevertheless, the survey results showed strong performance relative 
to other Local Authorities that publish their results (which have experienced 
similar trends in their feedback recently), and in relation to the quarterly surveys 
undertaken independently by the Local Government Association; 

 
(d) levels of smoking have remained relatively static since 2015 and are above the 

national average, the number of people with a poor mental wellbeing score have 
risen slightly, 12% of respondents (down from 13% in 2017) are at an increasing 
or higher risk of developing alcohol-related health problems, 23% of respondents 
(down from 25% in 2017) use public transport to get to work (but there has been a 
slight increase in those who walk or cycle, at 22%), and 44% of respondents 
(down from 45% in 2017) visit a park or open space at least once a week; 

 
(e) individual citizens are able to give feedback on the specific Council services that 

they use, so there is a large level of satisfaction data available in various areas. 
Consideration is being given to how all of this data can be brought together to act 
as a tool for informing improvements to Council services, and steps are also being 
taken to capture data that is reflective of specific groups of people; 

 
(f) the Council’s Customer Charter sets out how the Council should treat its citizens, 

and how citizens should act in return. The Council website has been refreshed to 
a high standard and the ‘Unlocking Loxley’ project is also moving forward. 
Services are designed around the users’ needs and are developed following 
community consultation. Online access to fully digital services is now increasingly 
available (allowing citizens to return immediate satisfaction feedback) with 
automation introduced wherever appropriate, so the requirement for back-office 

Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 3.07.19 

3 

paperwork has decreased significantly. However, the services can still be reached 
through a number of other means, and no measures have been put in place to 
discourage these means of access. Currently, only 25% of citizens use the phone 
to use a service if online access to it is available; 

 
(g) generally, it is most cost-effective to seek to answer a citizen’s question at the first 

point of contact, and work has shown that better handling of calls in the first 
instance reduces the total amount of calls received overall. Following the merger 
of some service contact centres, 97% of calls are picked up within 90 seconds. 
Customer Services works with teams to develop solutions for customer issues 
and monitors following feedback, to assess the impact of any new measures put 
into place. Work is also being done between the Council, councillors and 
Nottingham City Homes, to further develop customer services for citizens in 
Council-owned properties; 

 
(h) the missed collections of bins is a significant issue for citizens – particularly if bins 

are not collected on a repeated basis. There is also low satisfaction relating to the 
delivery of new or replacement bins. Work is being carried out to ensure that 
citizens are being given reasonable expectations in relation to this service; 

 
(i) ‘My Property’ is a website designed to tell citizens about services and facilities in 

their local area and is maintained by the Council’s Geographic Information 
System team, and close attention should be given to ensuring that the information 
up-to-date; 

 
(j) the ‘Have Your Say’ complaints procedure follows a two-step process. If 

Customer Services receives a complaint, the relevant service is asked to respond 
in the first instance, with support and input from Customer Services. If the citizen 
appeals the first response, Customer Services will address the complaint directly. 
If the complaint is taken further, it is be made to the Local Government 
Ombudsman (LGO) – but the Council has the lowest rate of complaints upheld by 
the LGO of all core cities in the country; 

 
(k) concerns were raised relating to the overall cost of the Citizen Satisfaction 

Survey, in terms of consultant fees and colleague time (given that it is no longer a 
statutory requirement), and the real robustness of its data in informing meaningful 
decision-making, due to the general nature of the data collected. Councillors felt 
that it would be of a much greater benefit to seek and understand citizen feedback 
at the level of individual wards and services. Councillors also asked whether it 
would be more cost-effective for the Council to carry out the survey, rather than 
using an external consultant; 

 
(l) provision should  be made to reflect the opinions gathered in terms of gender and 

ethnicity. People who do not speak English as a first language may need 
additional support and encouragement to take part in these surveys effectively, 
and steps should be taken to ensure that all citizens can participate in the process 
equally. Attention should also be paid to the gender and ethnicity of the people 
carrying out the survey on the doorstep, and whether this is reflective of the 
population being surveyed. 

 
RESOLVED to: 

Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 3.07.19 

4 

 
(1) request further information on the analysis of the open-ended comments 

from the Citizen Survey (circulated with the published minutes); 
 
(2) request further information on the ethnicity of respondents (circulated with 

the published minutes); 
 
(3) request further information on the ethnicity of individuals conducting the 

survey, if available (to follow); 
 
(4) note the report on the results of the Nottingham Citizen Survey 2018; 
 
(5) recommend that, after the next Nottingham Citizen Survey (which will be 

carried out in the context of the revised ward boundaries), following 
surveys are carried out every other year, in conjunction with any other 
surveys that can be procured as part of the same package, as a cost-saving 
measure, and that any further cost-saving measures should be explored in 
relation to the Citizen Survey. 

 
13  COLLEAGUE SATISFACTION SURVEY 

 
Gareth Sayers, Development and Change Manager, presented a report on the 
results of the latest Nottingham City Council Colleague Satisfaction Survey, which 
was open for six weeks from 1 October 2018. The following points were discussed: 
 
(a) the aim is to carry out a survey of colleague satisfaction every one to two years, 

instigated by the corporate leadership team. The survey is designed to be holistic 
and as accessible as possible, and it could be completed online, on paper, or on 
smartphones and tablets. Many of the scores were stable or improving in relation 
to the 2017 results. The key issues coming through related to parking, 
progression, pay, workload and morale, communication and collaboration, 
equalities, vision and purpose, and IT; 

 
(b) the response rate to the survey has been declining since 2015, but is still strong in 

relation to other Local Authorities that carry out and publish the results of similar 
surveys. Around 2,500 responses were returned, but the response was greatest 
from colleagues based at Loxley House. As such, additional measures need to be 
put in place to engage colleagues who are not office-based; 

 
(c) a number of job satisfaction figures have increased, with greater satisfaction 

relating to workload and positivity regarding workplace equality and diversity. 
However, satisfaction in the key activities undertaken by line managers has 
declined in all areas. The reasons for this will be explored carefully. Only 38% of 
respondents felt that there was good communication and collaboration between 
teams in different areas; 

 
(d) the response rate from BAME colleagues was relatively lower than that from other 

groups, but respondents usually felt supported and championed. A focus group is 
being established to discuss and promote wider engagement by BAME groups in 
this survey. A breakdown of the data in terms of response by gender will also be 

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 3.07.19 

5 

provided – with a particular focus on service areas where the majority of 
colleagues are of the same gender; 

 
(e) the data has been supplied to the departmental leadership teams, which will 

review the information and develop solutions to the primary issues. Corporate 
leadership will take an organisational view and focus on 3 to 4 major priorities. 
Line managers are crucial in ensuring that staff are briefed on and engaged with 
the resulting changes. 

 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) note the results of the 2018 Nottingham City Council Colleague Satisfaction 

Survey; 
 
(2) request a breakdown of the survey responses in terms of gender (to follow); 
 
(3) request an analysis of why the return rate from BAME colleagues was lower 

than expected, and why satisfaction in line management had decreased (to 
follow). 

 
14  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY STATUTORY GUIDANCE 

 
Zena West, Senior Governance Officer, presented a report on the Statutory 
Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities. The 
following points were discussed: 
 
(a) the Government guidance on Overview and Scrutiny is not prescriptive, but 

instead provides options and examples designed to promote a positive culture 
and develop and maintain a strong relationship between Scrutiny and the 
Executive. The report suggests that Scrutiny should be given a sufficient level of 
resourcing to operate effectively. Scrutiny bodies should always ensure that any 
recommendations that they make are fully evidence-based; 

 
(b) the 2018/19 Overview and Scrutiny Report will be presented to the full Council 

meeting on 8 July. 
 
RESOLVED to note the recommendations from the Statutory Guidance on 
Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities. 
 
15  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Zena West, Senior Governance Officer, presented the proposed work programme for 
the 2019/20 municipal year. Councillors felt that it would be helpful to meet with the 
new Leader of the Council earlier than was currently planned. 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

4 SEPTEMBER 2019 

DISCUSSION WITH THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING, 
PLANNING AND HERITAGE 
 

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To hear from the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Heritage on 

her main priorities and challenges for the 2019/20 municipal year. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 To use the information received at the meeting from Councillor Linda 

Woodings, Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Heritage, to inform 
questioning and identify potential areas for future scrutiny. 

 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 The key responsibilities for the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning 

and Heritage are:  
Planning  
Planning Policy and Development Management  
Housing  
Physical neighbourhood transformation and regeneration.  
Estate Management – Council and private Estates  
Private Housing and Private Rented Sector  
Performance of NCH and Housing Associations  
Student Housing  
Housing with care and support.  
Strategic and Retained Housing functions  
Regeneration Land and Property  
Temporary Accommodation commissioning  
HiMOs  
Heritage  
Homelessness and Housing Aid  
Policy and Operational 

 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Laura Wilson 
 Senior Governance Officer 
 0115 8764301 
 laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Page 10

mailto:laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

4 SEPTEMBER 2019 

HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING 

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To receive information on homelessness and rough sleeping in 

Nottingham, including the work of Housing Aid. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 To consider the information provided and use it to inform questioning and 

make recommendations, where appropriate. 
 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 At its meetings in June and July 2018, the Committee considered 

information in relation to the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017. This meeting will focus on the provision and commissioning of 
homelessness prevention and reduction services, and monitoring 
processes. 

 
3.2 Reducing homelessness is a priority for the Council, and there is lots of 

work underway to combat it, such as: 

  a programme of affordable council housing development which will 
help provide accommodation at a cost and standard that provides 
residents with a decent home; 

  protecting benefits and welfare advice services for citizens in order 
that they do not get into debt; 

  campaigning to scrap the ‘right to buy’; 

  budgeting £9 million to address homelessness in the city, making the 
purchase of 130 homes possible for use as temporary 
accommodation; 

  increasing the size of the team to support people to avoid them 
becoming homeless and facilitate access to new tenancies in the 
private rented sector; 

  preventing unnecessary evictions from social housing and identifying 
and preventing eviction of families at risk; 

  consulting on the way housing is allocated to allow people to have a 
fair chance of accessing the limited supply of social housing before 
they reach the stage of homelessness; 

  contacting empty home owners across the City to offer to purchase 
properties and bring them back into use; 

  working with a cross-council taskgroup and the Homelessness 
Prevention Strategy Implementation Group, alongside the 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

Homelessness Partnership Forum to address all the issues and 
undertake to prevent and address homelessness in the city. 

 
3.3 The Council has a ‘no first night out’ policy which means that those 

people who present as rough sleeping in the city either have, or have 
been offered accommodation. A rough sleeper count is conducted every 
month by the City’s Street Outreach Team. 

 
3.4 Housing Aid delivers the statutory homeless function within the city. If a 

citizen is homeless or threatened with homelessness they can provide 
advice, assistance and support in: 
• finding accommodation; 
• help keeping existing accommodation; 
• benefits advice; 
• debt and budgeting advice; 
• advice on keeping a tenancy; 
• keeping safe in their home. 

 The service is currently located on Parliament Street, but will be moving 
to Loxley House later this year. 

 
3.5 Colleagues from the relevant teams in the Council will be at the meeting 

to provide and discuss information. 
 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 Joint report from all Council services working on homelessness and 

rough sleeping. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Laura Wilson 
 Senior Governance Officer 
 0115 8764301 
 laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Page 12

mailto:laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 
 

Report for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee following the request for an 
update on the issue of increasing homelessness in Nottingham, Housing Aid service 
and performance, information around recording, commissioning of services, and if 
there have been any rough sleeper deaths in Nottingham. 
 
Reasons for the increase in homelessness 
 
It is widely accepted that the reason for the national increase in homelessness is a 
combination of years of continued austerity (including welfare reform and substantial 
budget cuts) at the same time as a reduced availability of truly affordable housing.  
  
Furthermore, investment in services to help prevent homelessness and address the 
causes of homelessness (e.g. mental health, substance misuse, offending) has been 
significantly cut over recent years.  Analysis from St Mungos and Homeless Link 
estimates that there has been £5 billion less spent between 2009 and 2018 than if 
the 2007/8 funding levels had been maintained. 
 
The number of rough sleepers has increased over recent years.  The annual 
snapshot showed a 165% increase between 2010 and 2018.  In Nottingham in 2010, 
184 individuals were found rough sleeping and in 2018 this total had risen to 635 
different people within the year. 
 
There have been further pressures on local authority homelessness services since 
the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act in April 2018.  The new 
legislation brings in a statutory duty for councils to try to prevent homelessness of 
households at risk, or if the household becomes homeless, the council must try to 
help them find alternative accommodation before they are able to make a decision 
under ‘full duty’ – which is the old ‘homelessness application’.  In March 2019, the 
Local Government Association published a research report which found that most 
councils have reported an increase in homelessness presentations, caseloads and 
use of temporary accommodation following the introduction of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act.   
 
Homelessness in Nottingham 
 
Homelessness in Nottingham can be separated into two defined cohorts: 

1. Families – who are generally low support needs but are homeless because of 
low household finances and limited availability of affordable housing 

2. Single people – who are either young people with limited resources/resilience 
or people aged between 25-60 who have got a range of support needs that 
have contributed to the cause of their homelessness (e.g. mental health, 
substance misuse, history of childhood trauma, offending).   

Whilst it is visible and extreme, rough sleeping accounts for only around 5% of 
homelessness in Nottingham.  Families are never found rough sleeping in the city 
and largely rough sleepers are middle-aged single males.  
 
Around 4800 households approached Nottingham City Council for homelessness 
assistance in 2018.  Currently, Nottingham City Council Housing Aid has 1300 open 
homeless cases and each officer has an average caseload of 75.  Around 95 
different households present to Housing Aid each week and in addition, the service 

Page 13



 
 

receives around 15 referrals about homeless people every day from public bodies 
such as prison, hospital and the Jobcentre.  The council currently provides 289 
families with temporary accommodation, a room in supported accommodation to 395 
single homeless people and emergency shelter to 42 rough sleepers.  Despite this, 
at the most recent street count in August, 55 rough sleepers were found. 
 
Trend analysis shows us that the pressure has increased over the last decade.  In 
Q3 2018, there were 521 households supported as homeless under a duty yet in Q3 
2009 HAid made decisions on only 194 statutory homelessness cases.  
 
Pressure on temporary accommodation provision 
 
A snapshot for official reporting in 2009 showed there were 74 families in temporary 
accommodation.  However, the snapshot for the same time in 2018 found 244 
families were provided with emergency accommodation under a homelessness duty.  
This increase is reflected nationally with Crisis research finding a 71% national 
increase in temporary accommodation from 2011 to 2018.  This is partly because of 
increased demand for support as people are unable to financially sustain their 
tenancies or access housing that is affordable to them.   
 
However, it is also because the new homelessness legislation requires a 
homelessness relief period of 8 weeks where households are expected to be 
proactive and work with the council to find accommodation (mainly in the private 
rented sector).  It is common for households to resist engaging in this process and 
the council is limited in the action it can take until the 56 days have expired and an 
offer of accommodation can be made under the full homelessness duty. 
 
Role of the private rented sector 
 
There is an overwhelming desire for social housing in Nottingham however, the 
reality is that there were 11% fewer properties in stock in 2018 compared to 2008 – 
largely because of the popularity of the Right to Buy scheme which saw 435 
properties sold in 2017/18.  Turnover of remaining stock is slow – especially as 
Nottingham City Homes supports homelessness prevention by delivering an eviction 
prevention approach. 
 
Therefore, the private rented sector is largely relied upon to rehouse homeless 
households.  This is problematic in Nottingham where there is competition with 
students and professionals for properties, rents are generally higher than the frozen 
local housing allowance levels and landlords may be reluctant or disinterested in 
working with the local authority. 
 
Although the private rented sector is the main solution to homelessness in 
Nottingham, it is also one of the main reasons people become homeless.  Receiving 
notice on a private rented tenancy and being asked to leave the family home by 
parents or relatives are overwhelmingly the two primary reasons for homelessness – 
especially for families.  Whilst a desire to sell the property or rent it to someone who 
can pay more rent may drive some private landlords to serve eviction notices, locally 
in Nottingham there are also common reports of high and ongoing rent arrears and 

Page 14



 
 

people not adhering to terms of tenancy agreements as being the reason provoking 
the eviction. 
Nottingham City Council response to homelessness 
 
Nottingham City Council takes a strategic approach to homelessness prevention and 
response.  The new Homelessness Prevention Strategy was agreed at Full Council 
in November 2018 and it promotes cross-sector partnership working to: 

1. Tackle the causes of homelessness (such as mental health, financial 
vulnerability and multiple and complex needs) 

2. Deliver early interventions to prevent people from becoming homeless (such 
as work with private, social and supported accommodation landlords to 
prevent evictions and with institutional settings such as hospital and prison to 
ensure housing upon discharge and release) 

3. Ensure that people are supported into suitable and sustainable 
accommodation if they do become homeless (by delivering housing solutions, 
including utilisation of the private rented sector)  

4. Address rough sleeping (through implementing a new system of services 
through maximising grant funding). 

 
The council has developed a sufficiency plan which looks at preventing people from 
needing rehousing, but if they do, ensuring there is adequate supply of suitable 
temporary accommodation and maximising opportunities to access affordable settled 
housing.  A major driver for this plan is to limit the use of Bed and Breakfast as 
temporary accommodation for families and not return to the position of October 2017 
where there was a high of 140 households accommodated in B&B.  Measures that 
have been introduced through the plan and which helped deliver the reduced use of 
B&B to zero by Christmas 2018 include: 

 Redesigning and expanding the Nottingham Private Rented Assistance 
Scheme (NPRAS) at Housing Aid to include a ‘say before you serve’ process 
for landlords to get in touch if they experience difficulty with their tenants and 
the introduction of social lettings to take on tenancy management 
responsibilities from the landlord in exchange for a small fee. 

 Loan to Nottingham City Homes for the purchase of 150 properties from the 
open market to be used as temporary accommodation and utilising 25 existing 
council owned property as temporary accommodation 

 An NCC property acquisitions programme which will see the purchase of 320 
units of social housing within the next 4 years, including properties to support 
the delivery of Housing First in the city.  The council also takes a proactive 
approach to encouraging developers to build affordable housing on new 
housing schemes. 

 Work with Nottingham City Homes to introduce a private sector leasing 
scheme to provide up to 48 additional properties for use as temporary 
accommodation 

 40 bedspaces in new hostel provision brought on line and arrangements with 
Nightly Paid Temporary Accommodation providers for self-contained 
emergency accommodation 

 Targeted interventions of social housing direct offers and a review of the 
allocations policy to ensure that a proportion of social housing properties can 
be utilised to help the council rehouse homeless families whilst at the same 
time enabling churn through the general waiting list. 

Page 15



 
 

 
 
 
Housing Aid service delivery 
 
In addition to the measures outlined above, there has been a review and changes to 
service delivery at Housing Aid.  This has included reducing staffing vacancies from 
13 to 6 and introducing a range of new grant funded posts to bolster the service and 
enable compliance with the legislative requirements as well as delivering an effective 
response to citizens in need. 
 
In preparation for the service move to Loxley House in Autumn, a new telephone 
system is being implemented to increase ability to answer more calls and manage 
the majority of triage over the phone, thus reducing footfall to the office and freeing 
capacity to focus on casework.  A new website is under development and when fully 
launched will provide advice on line, a degree of self-triage and the facility to access 
and update personal housing plans.  It is anticipated that this will allow more people 
to self-help or enable their case to progress without requiring a visit to the service 
and reducing total dependency on the council. 
 
In efforts to reduce demand for and length of stay in temporary accommodation 
Housing Aid have introduced additional scrutiny on approval decisions and intensive 
case management meetings to support decision making on more complex cases.  
The service has instigated a partnership arrangement with Priority Families to carry 
out home visits to all young people or households with children who have been made 
homeless by parents or family members.  Housing Aid and Childrens Services also 
work with Nottingham City Homes to deliver an Eviction Prevention approach to 
households who are at risk of losing their social housing because of failure to pay 
rent or antisocial behaviour. 
 
Housing Aid has also developed a policy to ensure household compliance and 
cooperation in resolving housing need and a dedicated placements officer is being 
recruited to enable temporary accommodation officers to focus on temporary 
accommodation management and support the implementation of this policy. 
 
Monitoring of information 
 
A cross-council group of officers has been meeting weekly-fortnightly since October 
2017 to drive forward the sufficiency plan.  The group analyses monitoring and 
performance data including:  

 circumstances around approvals and placements 

 throughput and length of stay in emergency accommodation 

 budget implications 

 delivery of new supply of temporary accommodation and number of tenancies 
that have been created in the private rented sector 

 home visits and outcome of the eviction prevention panel 

 progress on delivery of planned interventions and consideration of new 
options. 

 

Page 16



 
 

There are also daily meetings at Housing Aid to assess the circumstances of 
households in nightly paid emergency accommodation and implement move on 
plans. 
 
Other homelessness data on initial assessments, prevention, relief, full duty and 
temporary accommodation is recorded and submitted on the H-CLIC return, which 
has replaced the P1e as the statutory return required by the government. 
 
All commissioned homelessness services have a set of agreed outcomes and 
outputs that are reviewed in regular contract monitoring meetings.  The council also 
commissions the Street Outreach Team to provide a daily report on rough sleepers 
found so action can be taken to support them into housing options and a more 
detailed monthly report giving insight into gender, local connection and support 
needs. 
 
The Homelessness Strategy Implementation Group has membership from over 40 
organisations across the public and community sector and regularly seeks insight on 
emerging issues and trends at the monthly meetings to ensure that activity is 
targeted in the appropriate areas. 
 
Commissioned services 
 
Nottingham City Council commissions a range of services to prevent and respond to 
homelessness and reduce rough sleeping in the City.  This includes over 630 units of 
supported accommodation for homeless families and singles, specific services for 
rough sleepers, an independent living support service and a housing related advice 
service for people who need help to sustain or settle into new tenancies.  The council 
also commissions specialist mental health, domestic violence and substance misuse 
support services.  
 
The Adults Supported Accommodation service is commissioned from Nottingham 
City Council Core funding to provide access to 248 units of secure short-term 
accommodation & support to homeless adults who have a local connection to 
Nottingham City and are assessed as having complex needs, before facilitating a 
return to more independent & settled accommodation. The provision is a mix of 
accommodation types (e.g. different sized hostels and dispersed accommodation, 
female only accommodation etc.) located in various wards within the city. 
 
Nottingham City Council also funds the provision of 80 bedspaces for homeless 
young people, 30 bedspaces for ex-offenders who are homeless after being released 
from prison and 16 homeless teenage parents. 
 
The Crime and Drugs Partnership commissions 31 units of accommodation across 
three refuges for female survivors of domestic violence and were successful in a bid 
for government funding for six additional bedspaces within an independently 
operating refuge for survivors with multiple and complex needs.  Nottingham City 
Council has also been successful in a partnership bid with Nottingham City Homes 
for the provision of eight houses offering continued support for those moving on from 
the refuges. 
 

Page 17



 
 

Commissioned services for Rough Sleepers 
 
NCC provides core funding for the delivery of the Street Outreach Team (SOT).  The 
aim of the service is to reduce levels of rough sleeping in Nottingham City through 
the early identification of rough sleepers during daily street outreach sessions, 
assessing their needs and facilitating access to accommodation.  The service also 
works to attend to the welfare of rough sleepers by supporting access to healthcare, 
treatment and support. 
 
The Street Outreach Team (SOT) work closely with Community Protection Officers 
(CPO’s) who provide additional support in helping to identify rough sleepers, provide 
welfare checks and encourage engagement with the SOT and other services. 
 
Nottingham City Council has taken full advantage of opportunities to bid for 
government funding to tackle homelessness.  NCC and partners have successfully 
bid for non-recurrent funding awards through the central Government Rough 
Sleepers Initiative (RSI) & the Rapid Rehousing Pathway (RRP) funds.  Securing this 
additional funding has involved the quick and intensive mobilisation and 
implementation of services by NCC & partners.  The result is delivery of a bigger 
system of support in Nottingham, up from £265,000pa at the start of 2016 to >£1.3m 
in 2019/20.  This has supported the implementation of our five-stage strategic 
approach of prevention, identification and engagement, assessment and support, 
shelter, resettlement and sustainability.  
  
This approach was developed following a number of dedicated partnership 
workshops where representatives from across the public and community sector 
identified the challenges and responsibilities they had in delivering solutions.  An 
action plan has been generated which includes the delivery and connectivity of the 
new services introduced through grant funding, specific task groups to address 
prison release, hospital discharge and mental health and a reconfiguration of the 
rough sleepers case conference meeting – giving officers the autonomy to seek 
individualised partnership solutions for complex cases. 
 
A summary of the system of services for rough sleepers is available overleaf.  
However, it does not include the wider systems of support to address the needs of 
rough sleepers (e.g. mental/physical health, substance and/or alcohol addiction etc. 
that can cause and sustain rough sleeping if they are unmet). 
 
Additional emergency shelter is provided during periods of cold weather (i.e. 
temperatures forecast at 0 degrees and below on a given night) under Nottingham’s 
Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP).  Under these conditions, the Sit-Up 
service based at London Road Fire Station (a partnership between Nottinghamshire 
Fire and Rescue and the British Red Cross) provides an extra 8 places of shelter for 
rough sleepers referred by the Street Outreach Team.

Page 18



 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

A list of the specific services that have been introduced as a result of government funding in 2019/20 is available at Appendix A. 
 
Nottingham City Council has achieved success from all competitive funding streams released by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG).  As part of their monitoring regime, officers from MHCLG have visited Nottingham on numerous occasions over 
the past 12 months and expressed satisfaction and praise in the way that the council and partners have responded to pressures and 
implemented the system of services.  Nottingham is held as an exemplar of good practice in this area and the government often arranges for 
other local authority areas to learn from our leading practices. 

P
age 19



 
 

Rough sleeper deaths in Nottingham 18/19 
 
Rough sleeping is a dangerous and isolating experience. Over time, people become more 
and more ostracised from society and are less likely to take actions such as attend a GP 
appointment when they are feeling unwell. 
 
Many people find that over time they feel deep the despair and shame, not only for 
previous trauma, but because they are homeless. 
 
The above factors, linked in with substance misuse, damp sleeping areas, poor hygiene 
and diet, means that those sleeping rough are incredibly vulnerable and therefore more 
susceptible to illness and death. 
 
In Nottingham over the past 12 months there have been 4 rough sleeper deaths. Each 
individual had very different circumstances and services knew much more about some 
than others.   
 
The cases are all very different yet equally upsetting. However, it is clear from all the 
reports from Framework and other agencies (substance misuse, Community Protection, 
Police, Opportunity Nottingham) that no individual died through neglect.  Regular checks 
were made on all individuals and they were all reminded of what they had available for 
them. When rough sleepers became ill teams even took medication to them and the 
Outreach nurse administered health care on the streets if they refused to go to see a GP.  
All individuals were offered relevant support and accommodation; however individuals 
cannot be forced to accept the offers if they do not wish to.  
 
One detail which all the individuals shared was a consistent lack of engagement. This is 
common amongst rough sleepers and has been identified as an area which we need to 
focus on. Therefore, Nottingham City Council is working alongside Opportunity Nottingham 
to create a team of volunteers with direct experience of homelessness to pair up with the 
Street Outreach team. They will operate more of a “buddy” system, building up trust and 
longer relationships with those rough sleeping. This has worked in other cities across the 
country and had a direct impact on engagement for many entrenched rough sleepers. 
 
Further information is available in Appendix B. 
 
Challenges 
 

 Short-term grant funding which does not enable future planning and restricts the 
market of delivery partners.  Intensive use of council resources to bid and implement in 
tight timescales.  Requires delivery partners with resources and assets that allow 
immediate mobilisation.  Funding can only be used in accordance with a prescriptive 
criteria and is dependent on rigorous monitoring.  The funding is not enough to replace 
what has previously been lost through budget cuts, despite the services needing to 
operate in an environment of increased pressure, need and demand.  There is no 
opportunity to ensure the continuation of services if the grant funding ends in March 
2020 

 The government asked the council to develop and deliver a plan to reduce reliance on 
B&B as emergency accommodation for rough sleepers under No First/Second Night 
Out.  The expectation is for the plan to be delivered within the existing grant allocation.    
This is challenging as existing provision is frequently at full capacity and B&B is the 
only form of accommodation that can be utilised when everywhere else is full.  There 

Page 20



 
 

is no further budget for B&B and the council will cease using it to deliver the NFNO 
policy from August 2019. 

 Government has not reinstated sufficient levels of investment in early intervention 
homelessness prevention services or budget for the supporting infrastructure that 
tackles the support needs that can be the cause of homelessness (e.g. mental health, 
domestic violence, refugee support, substance misuse, offending, targeted family 
support, welfare rights/debt/housing advice, tenancy and lifeskills training). 

 The shortage of affordable housing creates significant difficulty for the council in 
rehousing households when homelessness cannot be prevented.  Furthermore, the 
reliance on the private rented sector yet lack of appetite for this tenure impacts on the 
time it takes to facilitate suitable housing during the homelessness relief period and 
significantly increases pressure on temporary accommodation

Page 21



 
 

Appendix A 
Rough Sleeper services introduced via government funding grants  
(Rough Sleeping Initiative and Rapid Rehousing Pathway) 

 

 Rough sleeping coordinator – to oversee the effective delivery and 
connectivity of the system of services and ensure that they are responsive in 
meeting local need. 

 20 bed year-round emergency night shelter – provided by Emmanuel House 
from different church halls across the city.  The service is available to people 
without a local connection to Nottingham, with no recourse to public funds and 
people with low level needs. 

 Somewhere safe to stay hub – 8 bed year round sit-up service providing 
emergency and immediate access to shelter and safety 

 A new 10 bed short-term hostel – able to support rough sleepers with 
higher/more complex needs, including those previously excluded from 
shelters and supported accommodation services. Short –term stays (normally 
up to 3 months) are offered to re-engage rough sleepers and offer stability 
whilst alternative, longer-term accommodation with support is arranged 

 30 units of Housing Led accommodation in partnership with Nottingham City 
Homes (NCH), Framework HA & Registered Providers (RP’s).  Based on 
principles of the Housing First Model, this new option provides housing 
alongside intensive tenancy support rough sleepers with high needs and 
histories of entrenched homelessness. 

 2 x resettlement workers – to maximise throughput in accommodation 
provision 

 3 x community navigators – working with hard-to-engage rough sleepers to 
maximise engagement and help meet support needs that are preventing them 
from accepting offers of shelter 

 3 x specialist navigators – working to find accommodation and provide 
ongoing support for people in prison, hospital and mental health inpatient 
settings who are at risk of rough sleeping upon release and discharge 

 1.5 x local lettings officers – based in the Nottingham Private Rented 
Assistance Scheme (NPRAS) at Housing Aid and focussed on securing 
tenancies in private rented housing for rough sleepers 

 2 x tenancy support officers – providing tenancy sustainment support for 
rough sleepers once they are rehoused into independent living 

Page 22



 
 

Appendix B. 
Further information on rough sleeper deaths in Nottingham over the past 12 
months 
 
Person A 
Person A was a persistent rough sleeper and had been on the streets since 2007. 
He had stayed in many different types of supported housing but never for long 
periods of time, before returning to sleeping rough. 
 
He had significant substance misuse and mental health issues. He received support 
via Opportunity Nottingham and had a Community Psychiatric Nurse assigned to 
him. Framework also funded a detox for person A but he did not complete this and 
left before the programme had ended. 
 
In August 2018, he was housed by Opportunity Nottingham but was subsequently 
removed by Police. 
 
In September 2018 he attempted to take his own life and was taken to hospital. His 
life support was turned off after just over 2 weeks and he died in hospital. 
 
Person B 
Person B had been known by the Street Outreach Team since 2011. He had been 
accommodated a number of times in the City via Housing Aid. Over the years he 
would refuse offers of accommodation frequently, returning to sleeping rough for 
prolonged periods of time. He was most recently accommodated at Sneinton 
Hermitage under the additional Rough Sleeper Initiative provision.  
 
However, he left the property as he was wanted by the Police. He subsequently 
returned to the streets on 15/10/2018 after a custodial sentence.  
 
The Outreach team made contact with Person B and advised him to register for a 
bed at Emmanuel House, whilst they organised a detox for him at Michael Varnham 
House. Person B never attended Emmanuel House or the night shelter. 
 
Person B was found days later in his rough sleeping spot just outside of the City 
Centre. 
 
Person C 
Person C was first found rough sleeping in Nottingham in July 2018. He was very 
support resistant from the first interactions he had with the Outreach team. He 
consistently missed appointments and refused accommodation which was on offer to 
him. 
 
During the colder winter months a hotel was booked for person C under SWEP 
(Severe Emergency Weather Protocol) in order to preserve life. He was aware of this 
but never used the room which had been paid for. 
 
In February 2019 Person C was diagnosed with an invasive infection. Medication 
was taken to him by the Outreach nurse but he refused to take this or attend 
hospital. 
 
In April 19 person C suffered a cardiac arrest in the City and was taken to hospital. 
One month later he died in hospital, his parents were present. 
 

Page 23



 
 

Person D 
Person D was found rough sleeping in a tent within the city, along with 2 other 
individuals. Not a huge amount of information was held on the individual. Whenever 
he was offered support or assistance with housing he would say he was “ok” and 
didn’t want the help offered. Person D was visited regularly by the Outreach team but 
never engaged in conversation. 
 
In April 2019 the individual he shared a tent with flagged down police officers and 
advised that person D had died. The circumstances were not suspicious.  
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

4 SEPTEMBER 2019 

WORK PROGRAMME  

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To consider the Committee’s work programme for 2019/20. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 To discuss the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 

and make any necessary amendments. 
 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 The Committee is responsible for setting and managing its own work 

programme. 
 
3.2 In setting the work programme, the Committee should aim for an 

outcome-focussed work programme that has clear priorities and a clear 
link to its roles and responsibilities. 

 
3.3 The work programme needs to be flexible so that issues which arise as 

the year progresses can be considered appropriately. 
 
3.4 Where there are a number of potential items that could be scrutinised in 

a given year, consideration of what represents the highest priority or area 
of risk will assist with work programme planning. 

 
3.5 Changes and/or additions to the work programme will need to take 

account of the resources available to the Committee. 
 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20 Work Programme. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee reports and minutes. 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 

7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Laura Wilson 
 Senior Governance Officer 
 0115 8764301 
 laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  
 

Page 26

mailto:laura.wilson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 
 

DATE ITEMS 

9 October 2019 Selective Licensing 
To update the Committee on performance since the scheme was introduced 
 
Universal Credit 
To update the Committee on the progress of the implementation of Universal Credit in Nottingham  
 
Nottingham Credit Union 
To receive a written update detailing how work has progressed since the Committee was last updated in January 2019 
 
Work Programme 
To agree the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 
 

6 November 2019 Discussion with the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Safety and Communications 
To discuss the priorities and focus for the Portfolio, Council Plan priorities, budget pressures and challenges 
 
Update on the Workplace Parking Levy 
To update the Committee on the Levy and its implications for the city 
 
Work Programme 
To agree the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 
 

4 December 2019 Discussion with the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Growth the City Centre 
To discuss the priorities and focus for the Portfolio, Council Plan priorities, budget pressures and challenges 
 
Flooding 
To update the Committee on flood prevention work in the city 
 
Work Programme 
To agree the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 
 

P
age 27



 

DATE ITEMS 

8 January 2020 Discussion with the Portfolio Holder for Early Years, Education and Employment (with a focus on employment) 
To discuss the priorities and focus for the Portfolio, Council Plan priorities, budget pressures and challenges. Early 
Years and Education will be considered by the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
 
Work Programme 
To agree the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 
 

5 February 2020 Discussion with the Portfolio Holder for Leisure, Culture and IT 
To discuss the priorities and focus for the Portfolio, Council Plan priorities, budget pressures and challenges 
 
Work Programme 
To agree the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 
 

4 March 2020 Discussion with the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Local Transport (with a focus on local transport) 
To discuss the priorities and focus for the Portfolio, Council Plan priorities, budget pressures and challenges. Adult Care 
will be considered by the Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Work Programme 
To agree the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year 
 

8 April 2020 Work Programme 
To discuss ideas for the work programme for the 2020/21 municipal year 
 

 

P
age 28


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 Update from the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Heritage
	5 Homelessness and Rough Sleeping
	Homelessness and Rough Sleeping

	6 Work Programme

